Site Description: NEWTOWNARDS
Defence Heritage Project Number: 087
Irish Grid Reference: J 49287301     Easting:   349280     Northing:  373010
Location: Newtownards
County:	 Down
District /Townland: Commons (Ards), Corporation South
Date of Construction:	1940 - 1942
Site Type: Defended Airfield Site
Description of the site: Newtownards airfield originally developed as a result of Northern Ireland’s need for good quality airport facilities during the 1920s and 30s. The site was gifted by the Marquis of Londonderry, then Secretary of State for Air from 1931 – 1935. 
Opening in 1934 the early facilities included a single hangar and a clubhouse under the control of Airwick Ltd of Heston. 1938 seen the opening of the Sydenham civil airport and as such Newtownards civil operations were transferred to Belfast, leaving only the Northern Ireland Flying Club in residence. 
The outbreak of the Second World War meant the airfield was hastily requisitioned as it was a suitable location for training and “army co-operation” (Smith 1983, 160). Existing airfield features were augmented by the addition of many new structures including, Blister Hangars, and living accommodation. Three runways were added, one of which was half tarmac then grass. 
Numerous squadrons operated out of the site until 1944 after which the airfield was put into Care and Maintenance administration until the end of the war.
The airfield has remained functional for small commercial/private light aircraft, primarily the flying club. 
Much of the dispersed sites were cleared for housing development but many wartime defensive features remain. Below is a summary of these features provided to the Defence Heritage database, submitted as part of the Defence of Britain Project in 1996 (Krapper 1996, DHP 087).
The airfield is located on the eastern side of the town and is sited between the town and the tidal mud flats of Strangford Lough. Between 1940 and 1942 extensive defences were constructed both against an assault from the air onto the airfield itself, and against an attack from the sea. The airfield is still very much in use but commercial and housing development over the years may have led to the loss of some outlying original defensive features. In addition, to the airfield itself there are recorded to be three main assemblages of the defences:
The Westwinds Site: An area to the west of the airfield, and covering approaches from the west. It consists of a Trench Strongpoint, two Seagull Trenches, one Angle Trench, four Air Raid Shelters and seven hut bases.
The Sea Wall Site: Located to the east of the airfield and the approaches from the sea. It includes a Pill Box, three Strongpoint complexes and two Seagull Trenches. 
The Airfield Site itself: Which covers a number of isolated defensive locations scattered both within and around the perimeter. The majority cover onto the airfield itself. It consists of two Strongpoint complexes, a Trench Strongpoint, three Seagull Trenches and one Pill Box, as well as numerous associated airfield buildings (Krapper 1996, DHP 087).
Construction materials known to have been used: Concrete, brick, earth, metal and timber.
Condition of identified remains at site: Remaining airfield features are recorded to be in “Medium” condition. 
Information in this document was obtained from:
Smith D. J. 1983. Military Airfields of Scotland, the North-East and Northern Ireland. PSL Publishing Ltd.
The Northern Ireland Defence Heritage Project: http://go.qub.ac.uk/DefenceHeritageNI   
World War II Hangars - Guide to Hangar Identification: http://www.rafmonument.nl/_files/file/raf-hangars.pdf 
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